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B X

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Plaintiff, Airigan Solutions, LLC, hereby sue Defendants, the Individuals, Pattnerships
and Unincorporated Associations identified in the caption, which are set forth on Schedule “A™
hereto (collectively “Defendants™). Defendants are (i) promoting, selling, offering for sale and

distributing goods bearing and/or using counterfeits and confusingly similar imitations of
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Plaintiff’s registered trademark and its trade dress and (ii) promoting, selling, offering for sale
and distributing goods infringing Plaintiff’s patent within this district through various fully
interactive commercial Internet websites and Internet based e-commerce stores using the seller
identities and store URLSs set forth on Schedule “A” hereto (collectively, the “Seller IDs”). In

support of its claims, Plaintiff alleges as follows:

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This is an action for federal trademark counterfeiting and infringement; false
designation of origin, passing off, and unfair competition; common law unfair competition; and
common law trademark infringement pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1114, 1116, 1125(a), and
1125(d), and patent infringement pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271 and The All Writs Act, 28 U.S.C.
§ 1651(a). Accordingly, this Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 15
U.S.C. § 1121 and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367 over Plaintiff’s state law claims because those claims are so related

to the federal claims that they form part of the same case or controversy.

2. Personal jurisdiction exists over Defendants in this judicial district pursuant to
N.Y.C.P.L.R. § 302(a)(1) and N.Y.C.P.L.R. § 302(a)(3), or in the alternative, Federal Rule of
Civil Procedure 4(k), because, upon information and belief, Defendants regularly conduct,
transact and/or solicit business in New York and in this judicial district, and/or derive substantial
revenue from their business transactions in New York and in this judicial district and/or
otherwise avail themselves of the privileges and protections of the laws of the State of New York
such that this Court's assertion of jurisdiction over Defendants does not offend traditional notions
of fair play and due process, and/or Defendants’ illegal counterfeiting and infringing actions

caused injury to Plaintiff in New York and in this judicial district such that Defendants should



reasonably expect such actions to have consequences in New York and in this judicial district,

for example:

a. Upon information and belief, Defendants were and/or are systematically directing
and/or targeting their business activities at consumers in the U.S., including New York,
through accounts with online marketplace platforms such as Alibaba.com, AliExpress.com
Amazon.com, Bonanza.com, dhgate.com, eBay.com, Walmart.com, and Wish.com, as well
as any and all as yet undiscovered accounts with additional online marketplace platforms
held by or associated with Defendants, their respective officers, employees, agents, servants
and all persons in active concert or participation with any of them (“User Accounts”),
through which consumers in the U.S., including New York, can view the one or more of
Defendants’ merchant storefronts that each Defendant operates, uses to communicate with
Defendants regarding their listings for Counterfeit Products and to place orders for, receive
invoices for and purchase Counterfeit Products for delivery in the U.S., including New York,

as a means for establishing regular business with the U.S., including New York.

b. Upon information and belief, certain Defendants are sophisticated sellers, each
operating one or more commercial businesses using their respective User Accounts through
which Defendants, their respective officers, employees, agents, servants and all persons in
active concert of participation with any of them, operate storefronts to manufacture, import,
export, advertise, market, promote, distribute, offer for sale and/or otherwise deal in
products, including the Counterfeit Products, which are held by or associated with
Defendants, their respective officers, employees, agents, servants and all persons in active

concert or participation with any of them (“Merchant Storefront(s)”) in wholesale quantities



at significantly below-market prices to consumers worldwide, including to those in the U.S.,

and specifically New York.

c. Upon information and belief, a majority of Defendants’ Merchant Storefronts
reflect multiple sales to consumers all over the world, including repeat sales to consumers in

the U.S.

d. Upon information and belief, all Defendants accept payment in U.S. Dollars and
offer shipping to the U.S., including to New York and specifically to the New York Address

(as defined infra).

e. Upon information and belief, Defendants have transacted business with consumers

located in the U.S., including New York, for the sale and shipment of Counterfeit Products.

f. Upon information and belief, Defendants are aware of Plaintiff, its NEGG product,
and are aware that their illegal counterfeiting and infringing actions alleged herein are likely
to cause injury to Plaintiff in the U.S., in New York and in this judicial district specifically,

as Plaintiff conducts substantial business in New York.

3. Venue is proper, inter alia, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 and 28 U.S.C. § 1400(b)

because, for example:

a. Upon information and belief, Defendants conduct, transact, and/or solicit business

in this judicial district.

b. Upon information and belief, Defendants or their agent(s) may be found in this

district because personal jurisdiction is proper in this district.



c. Upon information and belief, this is a judicial district in which a substantial part of
the events or omissions giving rise to the infringement claims occurred, or a substantial part

of the property that is the subject of the action is situated.

d. Defendants not resident in the United States may be sued in this judicial district

because personal jurisdiction is proper in this district.

THE PARTIES

4. Plaintiff, Airigan Solutions, LLC (“Airigan Solutions”) is a limited liability company
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Connecticut, having its principal place of

business at 107 John Street, Suite 1-C, Southport, Connecticut 06890.

5. Upon information and belief, Defendant Yiwu Lanhome Jewelry Co., Ltd. is a
merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://lanhome.en.alibaba.com/, where it offers for sale and/or
sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at 4th Floor, Unit 1, Building

101, Siji 6th Zone, Beiyuan Street, Jinhua, Zhejiang, China (Mainland).

6. Upon information and belief, Defendant Ningbo Glory Imp & Exp Co., Limited is a
merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://firstglory.en.alibaba.com, where it offers for sale and/or
sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at Rm. 706, No. 74, Bldg. 37,

Yangguang Liyuan, Shiqi Street, Yinzhou Dist., Ningbo, Zhejiang, China (Mainland).

7. Upon information and belief, Defendant Ningbo Jiangbei Jiamin Commodity Co., Ltd.
is a merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://jiamin.en.alibaba.com/, where it offers for sale and/or
sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at Hengshan Village, Hongtang

Street, Jiangbei District, Ningbo, Zhejiang, China (Mainland).



8. Upon information and belief, Defendant Ningbo Mateyness Household Co., Ltd. is a
merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://mateyness.en.alibaba.com, where it offers for sale and/or
sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at 23 Lianzhong Road, Gaogiao

Town, Ningbo, Zhejiang, China (Mainland).

9. Upon information and belief, Defendant Jiangshan Topme Import & Export Co., Ltd.
is a merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://jstuojin.en.alibaba.com/, where it offers for sale and/or
sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at 21 Changtangding, Shehou

Village, Shuangta Street, Jiangshan, Zhejiang, China (Mainland).

10. Upon information and belief, Defendant Yiwu Joyful Commodity Factory is a
merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://ywjoyful.en.alibaba.com/, where it offers for sale and/or
sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at Floor 1, Unit 3, Bldg. 39,

Yi'an Zone 2, Yiwu, Jinhua, Zhejiang, China (Mainland).

11. Upon information and belief, Defendant Ninghai Honghao Plastic Co., Ltd. is a
merchant on Alibaba.com, at http://nhhonghao.en.alibaba.com, where it offers for sale and/or
sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at 9-11, 11th floor, No. 396,

Shidai East Road, Ninghai, Ningbo, Zhejiang, China (Mainland).

12. Upon information and belief, Defendant Huizhou Kangning Industrial Co., Ltd. is a
merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://kangningltd.en.alibaba.com/, where it offers for sale and/or
sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at Room 3,Floor 14,Block
A,Huiyang World Trade Plaza,Intersection of Baiyun Road and Donghua Avenue,Huiyang

District,Huizhou City,Guangdog Privince, China (Mainland).



13. Upon information and belief, Defendant Ningbo Ontime Imp. & Exp. Co., Ltd. is a
merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://nbontime.en.alibaba.com/, where it offers for sale and/or
sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at No.1498,Jiangnan Road,

Ningbo, Zhejiang, China (Mainland).

14. Upon information and belief, Defendant Ningbo Haishu Greenwell Commodity
Industrial Co., Ltd. is a merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://nbgreenwell.en.alibaba.com/, where
it offers for sale and/or sells Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at 911,

No. 16, Nanzhan East Road, Haishu Dist., Ningbo, Zhejiang, China (Mainland).

15. Upon information and belief, Defendant Hefei Fengzhisheng Trade Co., Ltd. is a
merchant on Alibaba.com, at https://hffzs.en.alibaba.com/, where it offers for sale and/or sells
Counterfeit Products and with a principal place of business at Room1806, A# ,L.vdilanhai

building, Qianshan Road, Hefei, Anhus, China (Mainland).

16. Upon information and belief, each of the above-identified Defendants target their
business activities toward consumers throughout the United States, including within this district,
and conduct pervasive business through the operation of, at least, the fully interactive
commercial Internet websites and Internet based marketplace website Alibaba.com, via the

identified e-commerce stores.

17. Upon information and belief, the Seller ID Defendants on Schedule “A” are
individuals and/or business entities of unknown makeup, each of whom, upon information and
belief, either reside or operate in foreign jurisdictions, or redistribute products from the same or
similar sources in those locations. Defendants have the capacity to be sued pursuant to Federal
Rule of Civil Procedure 17(b). Defendants target their business activities toward consumers

throughout the United States, including within this district, and conduct pervasive business
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through the operation of, at least, the fully interactive commercial Internet websites and Internet
based marketplace websites, AliExpress.com, Amazon.com, Bonanza.com, dhgate.com,
eBay.com, Walmart.com, and Wish.com, via the e-commerce stores existing under the Seller

IDs.

18. Upon information and belief, the Seller ID Defendants use aliases in conjunction with

the operation of their businesses as set forth in Schedule “A” hereto.

19. Upon information and belief, Defendants are the past and present controlling forces
behind the sale of products bearing and/or using counterfeits and infringements of Plaintiff’s

trademark, trade dress, and patent as described herein using at least the Seller IDs.

20. Upon information and belief, Defendants directly engage in unfair competition with
Plaintiff by advertising, offering for sale and selling goods bearing and/or using counterfeits and
infringements of Plaintiff’s trademark, trade dress, and patent to consumers within the United
States and this district through several fully interactive, commercial Internet websites and
Internet based e-commerce stores operating under, at least, the Alibaba.com storefronts, the
Seller IDs, and any additional domain names, websites and corresponding website URLs or
seller identifications and store URL aliases not yet known to Plaintiff. Defendants have
purposefully directed some portion of their illegal activities towards consumers in the State of
New York through the advertisement, offer to sell, sale, and/or shipment of counterfeit and

infringing goods into the State.

21. Defendants have registered, established or purchased, and maintained the
Alibaba.com storefronts, Seller IDs, and the websites and e-commerce stores operating
thereunder. Upon information and belief, Defendants have engaged in fraudulent conduct with

respect to the registration of the Seller IDs by providing false and/or misleading information to
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their various registrars and/or to the Internet based e-commerce platforms where they offer for
sale and/or sell, during the registration or maintenance process related to their respective Seller
ID. Upon information and belief, Defendants have anonymously registered and maintained some

of the Seller IDs for the sole purpose of engaging in illegal counterfeiting activities.

22. Upon information and belief, Defendants will continue to register or acquire new
seller identification aliases, and consequently new URL addresses in connection therewith, for
the purpose of selling and offering for sale goods bearing and/or using counterfeit and
confusingly similar imitations of Plaintiff’s trademark and trade dress and infringing Plaintiff’s

patent unless preliminarily and permanently enjoined.

23. Defendants’ Internet-based businesses infringe the intellectual property rights of

Plaintiff.

24. Defendants’ business names, i.e., the Seller IDs, associated payment accounts, and
any other alias domain names and seller identification names or store URLs used in connection
with the sale of counterfeit and infringing goods bearing and/or using Plaintiffs’ respective
trademarks, trade dress, and patent are essential components of Defendants’ online activities and
are the means by which Defendants further their counterfeiting and infringing scheme and cause
harm to Plaintiffs. Moreover, Defendants are using Plaintiff’s trademark to drive Internet
consumer traffic to their websites and e-commerce stores operating under the Seller IDs, thereby
creating and increasing the value of the Seller IDs and decreasing the size and value of Plaintiff’s

legitimate consumer marketplace at Plaintiffs’ expense.



COMMON FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

Plaintiff’s Business, Trademark, Trade Dress, and Patent Rights

25. Plaintiff sells a unique and revolutionary patented product under the federally

registered trademark NEGG® that quickly and easily peels hard boiled eggs.

26. Plaintiff has spent substantial time, money and effort in building up and developing

consumer recognition, awareness and goodwill in its NEGG®™ mark and NEGG® product.

27. The success of the NEGG® product is due in part to Plaintiff’s marketing and
promotional efforts. These efforts include advertising and promotion through television, retailer
websites and other internet-based advertising, print, participation in trade shows, among other

efforts, including New York.

28. Plaintiff’'s NEGG® product has been featured on television (the Today show, Home
Shopping Network), newspapers (New York Times, USA Today) and numerous videos on
YouTube, Facebook and other social media sites. Numerous videos featuring Plaintiff’s NEGG®

product have been collectively viewed hundreds of thousands of times, if not millions of times.

29. Plaintiff’s NEGG® product is proudly manufactured in the United States using the

highest quality materials and processes.

30. Plaintiff owns trademark rights, trade dress, and patent rights regarding its NEGG®

product.

a. Plaintiff is the owner of source identifying trademarks, including NEGG"
(Reg. No. 5,142,630 attached as Exhibit 1) and trade dress shown in Exhibit 2 that
Plaintiff uses to distinguish its unique product. Plaintiff owns the overall combination

and arrangement of all non-functional design elements of Plaintiff’s product and
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packaging, including its product insert, which are inherently distinctive and/or have

acquired secondary meaning in the mind of the purchasing public.

b. Plaintiff owns a United States patent for its unique NEGG™ product, including

U.S. Patent No. 9,968,211 for PERSONAL EGG PEELER (attached as Exhibit 3).
c. Plaintiff also owns copyrights for its packaging, including its product insert.

31. Plaintiff’s trademark, trade dress, patent, and copyright rights make it unlawful for

competitors to infringe Plaintiff’s rights.

a. Because of Plaintiff’s NEGG® registered trademark, no competitor can
lawfully use Plaintiff’s NEGG" registered trademark in a manner that could cause

confusion as to source.

b. Because of Plaintiff’s copyrights for its packaging and trade dress rights, no
competitor can lawfully copy Plaintiff’s copyrighted expression or use packaging that

could cause a likelihood of confusion as to the source of the competing product.

c. Because of Plaintiff’s patent on its NEGG® product, no competitor can
lawfully make, use, offer for sale, or sell a competing product that infringes Plaintiff’s

patent.

32. Like many other rights owners, Plaintiff suffers ongoing daily and sustained
violations of its copyright, trademark and patent rights at the hands of counterfeiters and
infringers, such as Defendants herein. Plaintiff is harmed, the consuming public is duped and

confused, and the Defendants earn substantial profits in connection with the infringing conduct.

33. In order to combat the harm caused by the combined actions of Defendants and others

engaging in similar infringing conduct, Plaintiff has expended significant resources in connection
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with its intellectual property enforcement efforts. The recent explosion of infringement over the
Internet has created an environment that requires companies to expend significant time and
money across a wide spectrum of efforts in order to protect both consumers and itself from

infringement of its copyrights, trademark rights and patent rights.

34. Upon information and belief, at all times relevant hereto, Defendants in this action
had full knowledge of Plaintiff’s copyrights, trademark rights, trade dress, and/or patent rights,
including Plaintiff’s exclusive right to use and license such intellectual property and the goodwill

associated therewith.

a. Plaintiff has complied with Section 29 of the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. § 1111)
and has provided actual notice of its trademark registration for NEGG®. See Plaintiff’s

product insert (Exhibit 2).

b. Plaintiff gave written notices of infringement of one or more of its intellectual
property rights to Alibaba (Alibaba.com and AliExpress.com) with respect to Seller IDs
on Schedule “A”. On information and belief, Alibaba then provided written notice of the

infringement.

b. Plaintiff gave written notices of infringement of one or more of its intellectual
property rights to Amazon with respect to Seller IDs and/or infringing product ASIN
numbers on Schedule “A”. On information and belief, Amazon then provided written
notice of the infringement to contact email address for each Seller ID of each infringing

product ASIN.
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c. Plaintiff gave written notices of infringement of one or more of its intellectual
property rights to Bonanza with respect to Seller IDs on Schedule “A”. On information

and belief, Bonanza then provided written notice of the infringement.

d. Plaintiff gave written notice of infringement of one or more of its intellectual
property rights to dhgate.com with respect to Seller IDs on Schedule “A”. On

information and belief, dhgate.com then provided written notice of infringement.

e. Plaintiff gave written notices of infringement of one or more of its intellectual
property rights to eBay with respect to Seller IDs on Schedule “A”. On information and

belief, eBay then provided written notice of the infringement.

f. Plaintiff gave written notices of infringement of one or more of its intellectual
property rights to Walmart with respect to Seller IDs on Schedule “A”. On information

and belief, Walmart then provided written notice of the infringement.

g. Plaintiff gave written notices of infringement of one or more of its intellectual
property rights to Context Logic (operator of Wish.com) with respect to Seller IDs on
Schedule “A”. On information and belief, Context Logic then provided written notice of

the infringement.
The Online Marketplace Platforms and Defendants’ User Accounts

35. Alibaba.com, AliExpress.com, Amazon.com, Bonanza.com, dhgate.com, eBay.com,
Walmart.com, and Wish.com, are online marketplace platforms which allow manufacturers,
wholesalers and other third party merchants, like Defendants, to advertise, distribute, offer for
sale, sell and ship their wholesale and retail products originating from China directly to

consumers worldwide and specifically to consumers residing in the United States, including New
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York. Upon information and belief, the wish.com online marketplace platform is owned by
ContextLogic, Inc., a Delaware corporation with a principal place of business at One Sansome

Street, 40" floor, San Francisco, CA 94104.

36. Defendants are individuals and/or businesses, who, upon information and belief, are
located in China but conduct business in the U.S. and other countries by means of their User
Accounts and on their Merchant Storefronts on Wish as well as potentially yet undiscovered

additional online marketplace platforms.

37. Through their Merchant Storefronts, Defendants offer for sale and/or sell consumer
products, including Counterfeit Products, and target and ship such products to customers located

in the U.S., including New York, and throughout the world.
Defendants’ Infringing Activities

38. Upon information and belief, Defendants are promoting and advertising, distributing,
selling and/or offering for sale inexpensive copies of Plaintiff’s NEGG® product in interstate
commerce that infringes Plaintiff’s trademark rights, trade dress rights, and patent rights
(collectively referred to as, “Infringing Product(s)” or “Counterfeit Product(s)”), through the

fully interactive Internet based e-commerce stores operating under the Seller IDs.

a. The packaging for Defendants’ competing goods uses identical copies of

Plaintiff’s Mark for different quality goods.

b. The packaging for Defendants’ competing goods copies large amounts of
Plaintiff’s copyrighted expression for its packaging, and the similar trade dress creates a

likelihood of confusion as to source.
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c. Defendants’ competing goods look nearly identical, which creates a likelihood
of confusion as to source, as Defendants’ competing goods are confusing similar

imitations of Plaintiff’s product.

d. Defendants make, use, offer for sale, or sell competing products that infringe

Plaintiff’s patent.

e. Some Defendants have used Plaintiff’s NEGG" trademark on packaging or in

advertisements to drive sales.

f. Defendants’ competing goods are of a quality substantially and materially

different than that of Plaintiff’s genuine goods.

g. Defendants sell or offer the infringing goods for a retail price well below the

usual retail price of Plaintiff’s genuine patented product.

39. Defendants target their business activities towards consumers throughout the United
States, including within this district, and conduct pervasive business through the operation of, at
least, one fully interactive commercial Internet based e-commerce store via, at least, the Internet
marketplace websites Alibaba.com, AliExpress.com Amazon.com, Bonanza.com, dhgate.com,
eBay.com, Walmart.com, and Wish.com, under various Seller IDs, including the Seller IDs in

Schedule “A”.

40. Defendants have purposefully directed some portion of their illegal activities towards
consumers in the State of New York through the advertisement, offer to sell, sale, and/or

shipment of infringing goods into the State.

41. Defendants are the past and present controlling forces behind the sale of products that

infringe Plaintiff’s intellectual property as described herein using at least the Seller Ids in

-15 -



Schedule “A” and the Seller IDs associated with the infringing product ASIN numbers in
Schedule “A”. Defendants have registered, established or purchased, and maintained their Seller

Names.

42. Upon information and belief, some Defendants have anonymously registered and
maintained some of the Seller IDs for the sole purpose of engaging in illegal counterfeiting or
infringement activities. For instance, after notice that a particular Seller Name has sold an
infringing product with a particular ASIN number, a new Seller Name will be used (e.g. a new
“Just Launched Seller”) to sell the same infringing product under a new ASIN number associated
with the new Seller Name. The result can be a never ending “Whack—A-Mole” situation where

new infringers keep popping up.

43. Upon information and belief, Defendants will continue to register or acquire new
Amazon Seller Name aliases for the purpose of selling and offering for sale goods that infringe
Plaintiff’s trademark rights , trade dress rights, and patent rights unless preliminarily and

permanently enjoined.

44. Defendants’ business names, i.e., Seller IDs, associated payment accounts, and any
other alias seller identification names used in connection with the sale of infringing goods are
essential components of Defendants’ online activities and are one of the means by which
Defendants further their infringing scheme and cause harm to Plaintiff. Moreover, Defendants
are using without permission Plaintiff’s copyrights, trademarks, trade dress and patents to drive
Internet consumer traffic to their e-commerce stores operating under their Seller IDs, thereby
increasing the value of the Seller IDs and decreasing the size and value of Plaintiff’s legitimate

marketplace and intellectual property rights at Plaintiff’s expense.

-16 -



Harm to Plaintiff

45. Upon information and belief, Defendants are concurrently targeting their infringing
activities toward consumers and causing harm within this district and elsewhere throughout the
United States. As a result, Defendants are harming Plaintiff and the consuming public for

Defendants’ own benefit.

46. By their actions, Defendants have created an illegal marketplace operating in parallel
to the legitimate marketplace for Plaintiff's genuine goods. Defendants are causing concurrent
and indivisible harm to Plaintiff and the consuming public by (i) depriving Plaintiff and other
third parties of their right to fairly compete for space within search engine results and reducing
the visibility of Plaintiff’s genuine goods on the World Wide Web, (ii) causing an overall
degradation of the value of the goodwill associated with Plaintiff’s trademark rights, and (iii)
increasing Plaintiff’s overall cost to market its goods and educate consumers about its brand via

the Internet.

47. Plaintiff is suffering irreparable and indivisible injury and has suffered substantial
damages as a result of Defendants’ unauthorized and wrongful use of Plaintiff’s intellectual
property. The natural and intended byproduct of Defendants’ actions is the erosion and
destruction of the goodwill associated with Plaintiff’s name and associated trademarks and the

destruction of the legitimate market sector in which it operates.

48. Defendants’ infringing products compete directly against Plaintiff’s products.
Defendants’ infringement was a cause in Plaintiff’s unit sales decreasing during the last several

months over the same time period the previous year. Plaintiff has thus lost profits.

-17 -



49. Plaintiff has suffered and will suffer irreparable injury as a result of Defendants’
continued sale of infringing products, and monetary damages are inadequate to compensate

Plaintiff for Defendants’ continued sale of infringing products.

a. Defendants sell cheaper and inferior competing egg peeler products that
infringe upon Plaintiff’s copyrights, trademarks, trade dress, and patents. Defendants’
sale of infringing products has caused Plaintiff loss of market share, reputational harm,

lost profits and/or jeopardy to Plaintiff’s competitive position.

b. Plaintiff cannot effectively exercise its rights under copyright, trademark, trade
dress, and patent which also damages Plaintiff’s relationship with its actual and/or

potential re-sellers.
c. Defendants have infringed in the past and threaten to infringe in the future.

50. Upon information and belief, Defendants’ payment and financial accounts are being
used by Defendants to accept, receive, and deposit profits from Defendants’ trademark
counterfeiting and infringing and unfairly competitive activities connected to their Seller IDs and
any other alias domain names or seller identification names being used and/or controlled by

them.

51. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law. Upon information and belief, Defendants
are likely to transfer or secret their assets to avoid payment of any monetary judgment awarded

to Plaintiff.
52. Defendants would suffer no cognizable harm from ceasing infringing conduct.

a. Defendants have no right to sell products that infringe Plaintiff’s copyrights,

trademark rights, trade dress rights, and patent rights.
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b. Defendants sell other products, so they would suffer little harm if they stopped

selling the infringing products at issue in this lawsuit.

c. Plaintiff will suffer great harm to its competitive position and business if

Defendants sell products that infringe Plaintiff’s rights.

53. The public interest will be served when it protects Plaintiff from infringement of its

copyright, trademark and/or patent rights.

54. Defendants are engaging in the above-described illegal counterfeiting and infringing
activities knowingly and intentionally or with reckless disregard or willful blindness to Plaintiff’s
rights. If Defendants’ infringing activities are not preliminarily and permanently enjoined by this

Court, Plaintiff and the consuming public will continue to be harmed.

COUNT I - TRADEMARK COUNTERFEITING AND INFRINGEMENT
PURSUANT TO § 32 OF THE LANHAM ACT (15 U.S.C. § 1114)

55. Plaintiff hereby adopts and re-allege the allegations set forth in the preceding

paragraphs as if set forth herein.

56. This is an action for trademark counterfeiting and infringement against Defendants
based on their use of counterfeit and confusingly similar imitations of Plaintiff’s Mark in
commerce in connection with the promotion, advertisement, distribution, offering for sale, and

sale of the Counterfeit Goods.

57. Specifically, Defendants are promoting and otherwise advertising, selling, offering
for sale, and distributing products bearing and/or using counterfeits and/or infringements of one
or more of Plaintiff’s Mark. Defendants are continuously infringing and inducing others to
infringe Plaintiff’s Mark by using them to advertise, promote, offer to sell, and/or sell goods

bearing and/or using Plaintiff’s Mark.
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58. Defendants’ concurrent counterfeiting and infringing activities are likely to cause and
actually are causing confusion, mistake and deception among members of the trade and the

general consuming public as to the origin and quality of Defendants’ Counterfeit Goods.

59. Defendants’ unlawful actions have caused and are continuing to cause unquantifiable

damages to Plaintiff and are unjustly enriching Defendants with profits at Plaintiff’s expense.

60. Defendants’ above-described illegal actions constitute counterfeiting and
infringement of Plaintiff’s Marks in violation of Plaintiff’s rights under § 32 of the Lanham Act,

15U.S.C. § 1114.

61. Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer irreparable injury and damages due
to Defendants’ above described activities if Defendants are not preliminarily and permanently

enjoined. Additionally, Defendants will continue to wrongfully profit from their illegal activities.

62. Based on Defendants’ actions as alleged herein, Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive
relief, damages for the irreparable harm that Plaintiff has sustained, and will sustain, as a result
of Defendants’ unlawful and infringing actions, as alleged herein, and all gains, profits and
advantages obtained by Defendants as a result thereof, enhanced discretionary damages, treble
damages and/or statutory damages up to $2,000,000 per counterfeit mark per type of goods sold,

offered for sale or distributed and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

COUNT II - FALSE DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN, PASSING OFF & UNFAIR
COMPETITION PURSUANT TO § 43(a) OF THE LANHAM ACT (15 U.S.C. § 1125(a))

63. Plaintiff hereby adopts and re-allege the allegations set forth in the preceding

paragraphs as if set forth herein.

64. Plaintiff’s Marks are inherently distinctive and/or have acquired distinctiveness.
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65. Upon information and belief, Defendants’ Counterfeit Goods using, offered for sale,
and sold under copies of Plaintiff’s Mark have been widely advertised, offered for sale, and

distributed throughout the United States via Internet websites and Internet marketplace websites.

66. Defendants’ Counterfeit Goods using, offered for sale and sold under copies of
Plaintiff’s Mark are virtually identical in appearance to Plaintiff’s respective, genuine goods.
However, Defendants’ Counterfeit Goods are different and likely inferior in quality.
Accordingly, Defendants’ activities are likely to cause confusion in the trade and among the

general public as to at least the origin or sponsorship of their Counterfeit Goods.

67. Defendants, upon information and belief, have used in connection with their
advertisement, offers for sale, and sale of the Counterfeit Goods, false designations of origin and
false descriptions and representations, including words or other symbols and trade dress which
tend to falsely describe or represent such goods and have caused such goods to enter into
commerce with full knowledge of the falsity of such designations of origin and such descriptions

and representations, all to Plaintiff’s detriment.

68. Defendants have authorized infringing uses of Plaintiff’s Mark in Defendants’
advertisement and promotion of their counterfeit and infringing branded goods. Defendants have
also misrepresented to members of the consuming public that the Counterfeit Goods being

advertised and sold by them are genuine, non-infringing goods.

69. Defendants knowingly and willfully used in commerce products and/or packaging
designs that are identical or confusingly similar to, and constitute reproductions of Plaintiff’s
Marks and affixed, applied and used false designations of origin and false and misleading
descriptions and representations on or in connection with the manufacturing, importing,

exporting, advertising, marketing, promoting, distributing, displaying, offering for sale and/or
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sale of Counterfeit Products with the intent to cause confusion, to cause mistake and to deceive
the purchasing public into believing, in error, that Defendants’ substandard Counterfeit Products
are Plaintiff’s or related products, and/or that Defendants’ Counterfeit Products are authorized,
sponsored, approved, endorsed or licensed by Plaintiff and/or that Defendants are affiliated,
connected or associated with Plaintiff, thereby creating a likelihood of confusion by consumers
as to the source of such Counterfeit Products, and allowing Defendants to capitalize on the
goodwill associated with, and the consumer recognition of, the Plaintiff’s Marks and products, to

Defendants’ substantial profit in blatant disregard of Plaintiff’s rights.

70. Additionally, Defendants are using counterfeits and infringements of Plaintiff’s Mark
in order to unfairly compete with Plaintiffs and others for space within search engine organic
results, thereby jointly depriving Plaintiffs of a valuable marketing and educational tool which
would otherwise be available to Plaintiffs and reducing the visibility of Plaintiff’s genuine goods

on the World Wide Web.

71. Defendants’ above-described actions are in violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham

Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(a).

72. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law, and have each sustained indivisible injury
and damage caused by Defendants’ concurrent conduct. Absent an entry of an injunction by this
Court, Defendants will continue to wrongfully reap profits and Plaintiff will continue to suffer
irreparable injury to their respective goodwill and business reputations, as well as monetary

damages.

73. Based on Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive relief as
well as monetary damages and other remedies as provided by the Lanham Act, including

damages that Plaintiff has sustained and will sustain as a result of Defendants’ illegal and
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infringing actions as alleged herein, and all gains, profits and advantages obtained by Defendants

as a result thereof, enhanced discretionary damages and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

COUNT I - PATENT INFRNGEMENT (35 U.S.C. § 271(a))

74. Plaintiff hereby adopts and re-allege the allegations set forth in the preceding

paragraphs as if set forth herein.

75. Plaintiff is the owner of U.S. Patent No. 9,968,211 (“the ‘211 patent”), issued May
15, 2018, for “PERSONAL EGG PEELER” and which covers Plaintiff’s NEGG® product. A

true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 3.

76. Defendants have infringed and continue to infringe the ‘211 patent either directly or
indirectly through acts of contributory infringement or inducement in violation of 35 U.S.C. §
271, by making, using, selling, importing and/or offering to sell infringing products, namely the

personal egg peelers that are nearly identical to Plaintiff’s NEGG" product. .

77. Defendants’ infringement, contributory infringement and/or inducement to infringe
has injured Plaintiff and it, therefore, is entitled to recover damages adequate to compensate it

for such infringement, but in no event less than a reasonable royalty.

78. Defendants’ infringement, contributory infringement and/or inducement to infringe
has been willful and deliberate because Defendants have notice of or knew of the ‘211 patent and
have nonetheless injured and will continue to injure Plaintiff, unless and until this Court enters
an injunction, which prohibits further infringement and specifically enjoins further manufacture,
use, sale, importation and/or offer for sale of products or services that come within the scope of

the ‘211 patent.
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79. Based on Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive relief as
well as monetary damages and other remedies as provided by the Patent Act, including damages
that Plaintiff has sustained and will sustain as a result of Defendants’ illegal and infringing
actions as alleged herein, enhanced discretionary damages and reasonable attorneys’ fees and

costs.
COUNT IV - COMMON LAV UNFAIR COMPETITION

80. Plaintiff hereby adopts and re-allege the allegations set forth in the preceding

paragraphs as if set forth herein.

81. This is an action against Defendants based on their promotion, advertisement,
distribution, sale, and/or offering for sale of goods bearing and/or using marks that are virtually
identical, both visually and phonetically, to Plaintiff’s Mark in violation of New York’s common

law of unfair competition.

82. Specifically, Defendants are promoting and otherwise advertising, selling, offering
for sale, and distributing goods bearing and/or using counterfeits and infringements of Plaintiff’s
Marks. Defendants are also using counterfeits and infringements of Plaintiff’s Mark to unfairly
compete with Plaintiff and others for (i) space in search engine results across an array of search

terms and (i) visibility on the World Wide Web.

83. Defendants’ infringing activities are likely to cause and actually are causing
confusion, mistake, and deception among members of the trade and the general consuming

public as to the origin and quality of Defendants’ products by their use of Plaintiff’s Mark.

84. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law and are suffering irreparable injury and

damages as a result of Defendants’ actions.
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85. As aresult of Defendants’ actions alleged herein, Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive
relief, an order granting Plaintiff’s damages and Defendants’ profits stemming from their

infringing activities, and exemplary or punitive damages for Defendants’ intentional misconduct.
COUNT IV - COMMON LAW TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT

86. Plaintiff hereby adopts and re-allege the allegations set forth in the preceding

paragraphs as if set forth herein.

87. This is an action for common law trademark infringement against Defendants based
on their promotion, advertisement, offering for sale, and sale of their Counterfeit Goods bearing
and/or using Plaintiff’s Mark. Plaintiff is the owners of all common law rights in and to

Plaintiff’s Mark.

88. Specifically, Defendants, upon information and belief, are manufacturing, promoting
and otherwise advertising, distributing, offering for sale, and selling goods bearing and/or using

infringements of Plaintiff’s Marks.

89. Defendants’ infringing activities are likely to cause and actually are causing
confusion, mistake and deception among members of the trade and the general consuming public
as to the origin and quality of Defendants’ Counterfeit Goods bearing and/or using Plaintiff’s

Mark.

90. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law and is suffering damages and irreparable

injury as a result of Defendants’ actions.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment on all Counts of this Complaint and an

award of equitable relief and monetary relief against Defendants as follows:
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a. Entry of temporary, preliminary and permanent injunctions pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §
1116, 35 U.S.C. § 283, and Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65 enjoining Defendants, their
agents, representatives, servants, employees, and all those acting in concert or participation
therewith, from manufacturing or causing to be manufactured, importing, advertising or
promoting, distributing, selling or offering to sell their Counterfeit Goods; from infringing,
counterfeiting, or diluting Plaintiff’s Mark; from using Plaintiff’s Mark, or any mark or trade
dress similar thereto, in connection with the sale of any unauthorized goods; from using any
logo, trade name or trademark or trade dress that may be calculated to falsely advertise the
services or goods of Defendants as being sponsored by, authorized by, endorsed by, or in any
way associated with Plaintiff; from falsely representing themselves as being connected with
Plaintiff, through sponsorship or association, or engaging in any act that is likely to falsely cause
members of the trade and/or of the purchasing public to believe any goods or services of
Defendants are in any way endorsed by, approved by, and/or associated with Plaintiff; from
using any reproduction, counterfeit, infringement, copy, or colorable imitation of Plaintiff’s
Mark in connection with the publicity, promotion, sale, or advertising of any goods sold by
Defendants; from affixing, applying, annexing or using in connection with the sale of any goods,
a false description or representation, including words or other symbols tending to falsely describe
or represent Defendants’ goods as being those of Plaintiff, or in any way endorsed by Plaintiff
and from offering such goods in commerce; from engaging in search engine optimization
strategies using colorable imitations of Plaintiff’s name or trademark; from further infringement,
inducement and contributory infringement of the patent-in-suit; and from otherwise unfairly

competing with Plaintiff.
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c. Entry of an Order that, upon Plaintiff’s request, any Internet marketplace website
operators and/or administrators that are provided with notice of the injunction, including but not
limited to Amazon.com, dhgate.com, eBay.com, Bonanza.com, Walmart.com, Alibaba.com, and
AliExpress.com, and ContextLogic, Inc., which operates the Wish.com platform, identify any e-
mail address known to be associated with Defendants’ respective Seller ID, and cease facilitating
access to any or all e-commerce stores through which Defendants engage in the promotion,
offering for sale, and/or sale of goods bearing and/or using counterfeits and/or infringements of

Plaintiff’s Mark.

d. Entry of an Order that, upon Plaintiff’s request, any Internet marketplace website
operators and/or administrators who are provided with notice of the injunction, including but not
limited to Amazon.com, dhgate.com, eBay.com, Bonanza.com, Walmart.com, Alibaba.com, and
AliExpress.com, and ContextLogic, Inc., which operates the Wish.com platform, permanently
remove any and all listings and associated images of goods bearing and/or using counterfeits
and/or infringements of Plaintiff’s Mark via the e-commerce stores operating under the Seller
IDs, including any and all listings and images of goods bearing and/or using counterfeits and/or
infringements of Plaintiff’s Mark linked to the same seller or linked to any other alias seller
identification name being used and/or controlled by Defendants to promote, offer for sale and/or

sell goods bearing and/or using counterfeits and/or infringements of Plaintiff’s Mark.

e. Entry of an Order that, upon Plaintiff’s request, any Internet marketplace website
operators and/or administrators who are provided with notice of the injunction, including but not
limited to Amazon.com, dhgate.com, eBay.com, Bonanza.com, Walmart.com, Alibaba.com, and
AliExpress.com, and ContextLogic, Inc., which operates the Wish.com platform, immediately

cease fulfillment of and sequester all goods of each Defendant bearing and/or using one or more
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of Plaintiff’s Marks in its inventory, possession, custody, or control, and surrender those goods to

Plaintiff.

f. Entry of an order requiring Defendants to account to and pay Plaintiff for all profits and
damages resulting from Defendants’ trademark counterfeiting and infringing and unfairly
competitive activities and that the award to Plaintiff be trebled, as provided for under 15 U.S.C.
§1117, or, at Plaintiff’s election with respect to Count I, that Plaintiffs be awarded statutory
damages from each Defendant in the amount of two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) per each
counterfeit trademark used and product sold, as provided by 15 U.S.C. §1117(c)(2) of the

Lanham Act.

g. Entry of an award pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117 (a) and (b) of Plaintiff’s costs and

reasonable attorneys’ fees and investigative fees associated with bringing this action.

h. Entry an order awarding Plaintiff damages adequate to compensate for the
infringement of its patent, but in no event less than a reasonable royalty for the use made of the
invention by the Defendants, together with interest and costs as fixed by the Court pursuant to 35

U.S.C. § 284 and that the award be trebled as provided for under 35 U.S.C. §284.

1. Entry of an Order finding that this case is exceptional and an award to Plaintiff of its

attorney fees and costs as provided by for under 35 U.S.C. § 205.

J- Entry of an Order that, upon Plaintiff’s request, any financial institutions, payment
processors, banks, escrow services, money transmitters, or marketplace platforms, including but
not limited to, including the Alibaba Group d/b/a Alibaba.com and Aliexpress.com (“Alibaba’)
payment services (e.g., Alipay.com Co., Ltd., Ant Financial Services), Amazon Payments, Inc.

(“Amazon”), eBay Inc. (“eBay”), PayPal Inc. (“PayPal”), Payoneer Inc. (“Payoneer”), Dunhuang
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Group d/b/a DHgate.com (“DHgate”) payment services DHpay.com, PingPong Global Solutions,
Inc. (“PingPong”),Walmart.com, and Context Logic, Inc. (“Context Logic”’) and their related
companies and affiliates, identify and restrain all funds, up to and including the total amount of
judgment, in all financial accounts and/or sub-accounts used in connection with the Seller IDs or
other domain names, alias seller identification names, or e-commerce store names or store URLSs
used by Defendants presently or in the future, as well as any other related accounts of the same
customer(s) and any other accounts which transfer funds into the same financial institution
account(s), to be surrendered to Plaintiff in partial satisfaction of the monetary judgment entered

herein.
k. Entry of an award of pre-judgment interest on the judgment amount.

1. Entry of an order for any further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff respectfully demands a trial by jury on all claims.

Dated: July 6, 2018

Of Counsel:

Brian Samuel Malkin

Norbert Lazar

FERENCE & ASSOCIATES LLC
409 Broad Street

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15143
Telephone: (412) 741-8400
Facsimile: (412) 741-9292

Respectfully submitted
Q. g
/"

Stagley D. Fefence III (SF 1086)
cou €ncelaw.com

FERENCE & ASSOCIATES LLC
409 Broad Street

Pittsburgh, PA 15143

Telephone: (412) 741-8400
Facsimile: (412) 741-9292

Attorneys for Plaintiff
Airigan Solutions, Inc.
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Enited States of ey,

WUnite States Patent and Trademark Office ‘?

Reg. No. 5,142,630
Registered Feb. 14, 2017
Int. Cl.: 8

Trademark

Principal Register

Director of the United States
Patent and Trademark Office

Negg

" Sheila Torgan (UNITED STATES INDIVIDUAL)

4000 Congress Street
Fairfield, CT 06824

Margaret Tyler (UNITED STATES INDIVIDUAL)
105 Dunham Road
Fairfield, CT 06824
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FIRST USE 10-15-2015; IN COMMERCE 10-18-2015
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PARTICULAR FONT STYLE, SIZE CR COLOR

SER. NO. 86-736,673, FILED 08-25-2015
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- WARNING: YOUR REGISTRATION WILL BE CANCELLED IF YOU DO NOT FILE THE
DOCUMENTS BELOW DURING THE SPECIFIED TIME PERIODS.

Requirements in the First Ten Years*
What and When to File:

o First Filing Deadline: You must file a Declaration of Use (or Excusable Nonuse) between the 5th and 6th
years after the regisiration date. See 15 U.S.C. §§1058, 1141k. If the declaration is accepted, the
registration will continue in force for the remainder of the ten-year period, calculated from the registration
date, unless cancelled by an order of the Commissioner for Trademarks or a federal court.

s Second Filing Deadline: You must file a Declaration of Use (or Excusable Nonuse) and an Application
for Renewal between the 9th and 10th years after the registration date.* See 15 U.S.C. §1059,

Requirements in Successive Ten-Year Periods*
What and When to File:

» You must file a Declaration of Use (or Excusable Nonuse} and an Application for Renewal
between every 9th and 10th-year period, calculated from the registration date.*

Grace Period Filings*

- The above documents will be accepted as timely if filed within six months after the deadlines listed above with
the payment of an additional fee.

*ATTENTION MADRID PROTOCOL REGISTRANTS: The holder of an international registration with an
extension of protection to the United States under the Madrid Protocol must timely file the Declarations of Use
(or Excusable Nonuse) referenced above directly with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO).
The time periods for filing are based on the U.S. registration date (not the international registration date). The
deadlines and grace periods for the Declarations of Use (or Excusable Nonuse) are identical to those for
nationally issued registrations, See 15 U.S.C. §§1058, 1141k. However, owners of international registrations
do not file renewal applications at the USPTO. Instead, the holder must file a renewal of the underlying
international registration at the International Bureau of the World Intellectual Property Organization, under
Article 7 of the Madrid Protocol, before the expiration of each ten-year term of protection, calculated from the
date of the intcrnational registration, See 15 U.8.C. §1141j. For more information and renewal forms for the
international registration, see http://vww.wipo.int/madrid/en/.

NOTE: Fees and requirements for maintaining registrations are subject to change. Please check the
USPTO website for further information. With the exception of renewal applications for registered
extensions of protection, you can file the registration maintenance documents referenced above online ath
ttp://www.uspio.gov.

NOTE: A courtesy e-mail reminder of USPTO maintenance filing deadlines will be sent to trademark
owners/holders who authorize e-mail communication and maintain a current e-mail address with the
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Electronic Application System (TEAS) Correspondence Address and Change of Owner Address Forms
available at http://www.uspto.gov.
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Easy, Fast
& Fun!

€gg
peeler

Easy, Fast & Fun! Easy, Fast & Fun!

eggpeeler eggpeeler

Simple to Use:

L\ ADD a little water and
1\  your boiled egg.

AL - SNAP on the cap.
SHAKE up and down. ]
SLIDE off the shell.




Easy, Fast & Fun! Easy, Fast & Fun!

eggpeeler eggpeeler

If you like hard boiled eqggs,
The Negg™ is a kitchen essential.

® BPA Free * Food Safe

e Dishwasher e Available in
Safe multiple colors

For tips, tricks and some great recipes,
visit us at www.neggmaker.com

The NEGG™ is a trademark of Airigan Solutions, LLC
Patent Pending

©2017 Airigan Solutions, LLC

Airigan Solutions, LLC, 107 John Stregt, Southport, CT 06890 U, 85 A

White

Eqg
Peeler
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57 ABSTRACT

An apparatus is described that permits a user to quickly and
effortlessly separate an egg shell from the body of a hard-
boiled egg. The apparatus has a hollow body into which an
egg is inserted, a convex shaped bottom section and a
convex shaped top portion. Additionally, the interior surface
of the hollow body has a number of protrusions that con-
tribute to peeling action. Eggs are inserted into the appara-
tus, water is added, the apparatus is sealed, the user agitates
the apparatus for a short time, and then pours out the
separated egg and egg shell along with the water.

10 Claims, 5 Drawing Sheets

402




U.S. Patent May 15, 2018 Sheet 1 of 5 US 9,968,211 B2

102

FIGURE 1



U.S. Patent May 15, 2018 Sheet 2 of 5 US 9,968,211 B2

: ................................................................................................................................................... e X 202

206

FIGURE 2



U.S. Patent May 15, 2018 Sheet 3 of 5 US 9,968,211 B2

300

302

FIGURE 3



U.S. Patent May 15, 2018 Sheet 4 of 5 US 9,968,211 B2

FIGURE 4



U.S. Patent May 15, 2018 Sheet 5 of 5 US 9,968,211 B2

516
500 s
REMOVE END CAP AGITATE EGG PEELER
PORTION OF EGG ] APPARATUS FOR PRE-
PEELER SET PERIOD OF TIME
520
504~ l /”
REMOVE END CAP
TS FROM APPARATUS AND
POUR EGG, EGG SHELL
EGGS INTO MAIN BODY
R AR AND WATER OUT OF
MAIN BODY OF
APPARATUS
/ﬂsw
ADD PRE-DETERMINED
AMOUNT OF WATER TO
MAIN BODY OF
APPARATUS
PLACE END CAP ON EGG
PEELER WITH
SUFFICIENT FORCE TO
FORM A WATER TIGHT

SEAL BETWEEN END CAP
AND MAIN BODY OF
APPARATUS

FIGURES



US 9,968,211 B2

1
PERSONAL EGG PEELER

PRIORITY CLAIM

This Non-Provisional application claims under 35 U.S.C.
§ 120, the benefit of priority to the Provisional Application
62/163,062, filed May 15, 2015, and Titled “Personal Egg
Peeler” which is hereby incorporated by reference in its
entirety.

COPYRIGHT NOTICE

A portion of the disclosure of this patent document
contains material which is subject to copyright protection.
The copyright owner has no objection to the facsimile
reproduction of the patent document or the patent disclosure,
as it appears in the Patent and Trademark Office patent file
or records, but otherwise reserves all copyright rights what-
soever.

BACKGROUND

The present invention relates generally to food prepara-
tion, and specifically to preparing hard boiled eggs for
consumption. Removing the shell of a hard-boiled egg is a
tedious process, especially if there is little time prior to the
consumption of the eggs. Commercial processes for remov-
ing the shell do not apply to home makers and other
consumers of small numbers of eggs over a set period of
time as the machines used are generally large, cumbersome,
and expensive, although effective.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

Certain illustrative embodiments illustrating organization
and method of operation, together with objects and advan-
tages may be best understood by reference detailed descrip-
tion that follows taken in conjunction with the accompany-
ing drawings in which:

FIG. 1 is a view of the exterior of a personal egg peeler
apparatus consistent with certain embodiments of the pres-
ent invention.

FIG. 2 is a view of the main body of a personal egg peeler
apparatus consistent with certain embodiments of the pres-
ent invention.

FIG. 3 is a view of a main body and end portion
connectors of a personal egg peeler consistent with certain
embodiments of the present invention.

FIG. 4 is a view of a main body and end portion
connectors of a personal egg peeler in an exploded view
consistent with certain embodiments of the present inven-
tion.

FIG. 5 is a flow diagram for the operation of a personal
egg peeler consistent with certain embodiments of the
present invention.

DETAILED DESCRIPTION

While this invention is susceptible of embodiment in
many different forms, there is shown in the drawings and
will herein be described in detail specific embodiments, with
the understanding that the present disclosure of such
embodiments is to be considered as an example of the
principles and not intended to limit the invention to the
specific embodiments shown and described. In the descrip-

10

20

35

40

45

50

60

2

tion below, like reference numerals are used to describe the
same, similar or corresponding parts in the several views of
the drawings.

The terms “a” or “an”, as used herein, are defined as one
or more than one. The term “plurality”, as used herein, is
defined as two or more than two. The term “another”, as used
herein, is defined as at least a second or more. The terms
“including” and/or “having”, as used herein, are defined as
comprising (i.e., open language). The term “coupled”, as
used herein, is defined as connected, although not necessar-
ily directly, and not necessarily mechanically.

Reference throughout this document to “one embodi-
ment”, “certain embodiments”, “an embodiment” or similar
terms means that a particular feature, structure, or charac-
teristic described in connection with the embodiment is
included in at least one embodiment of the present invention.
Thus, the appearances of such phrases or in various places
throughout this specification are not necessarily all referring
to the same embodiment. Furthermore, the particular fea-
tures, structures, or characteristics may be combined in any
suitable manner in one or more embodiments without limi-
tation.

A apparatus used for peeling commercial quantities of
hard-boiled eggs, for use in such food items as egg-salad as
an example, are often large, cumbersome, and expensive.
The number of eggs to be peeled must, therelore, be quite
large in order to justify the expense for such an apparatus.

Peeling more than a dozen, but less than a quantity that
would justify the investment in a commercial size egg
peeling apparatus, is a tedious, time-consuming task. How-
ever, peeling one, two, or a dozen hard-boiled eggs remains
a tedious task, even though this process may not consume a
large amount of time. There is a need for a personal egg
peeler that removes the shell of a hard-boiled egg speedily
and with little effort, while still remaining cost effective to
purchase for a personal kitchen, or a low-volume commer-
cial kitchen.

The egg peeler apparatus herein disclosed provides a
low-cost, readily portable solution for the peeling of small
quantities of hard-boiled eggs. The apparatus is configured
to peel the eggs, separate the shell from the egg white, and
perform this process in a very short time cycle. The appa-
ratus consists of a cylindrical main body having convex end
caps that are configured to be attached and removed from the
cylindrical main body, and oval shaped protrusions extend-
ing from the interior surface of the cylindrical main body.
The cylindrical main body is of sufficient diameter to permit
the insertion of one or more eggs produced by a commercial
variety hen. However, this should in no way be considered
limiting as the cylindrical main body may be sized to
accommodate eggs lain by other species of fowl as well.

The egg peeler has a top portion, also with a convex
surface that faces the interior of the cylindrical main body,
having a water tight connection and seal for sealing the
apparatus when the top portion is connected to the main
body. The convex end caps form the top and bottom portions
of the apparatus when connected to the main body. Each end
cap may have a water tight connection such as a gasket, an
o-ring, a screw type fastener, or any other type of fastener
that keeps water sealed inside the main body when the end
caps are secured to the top and bottom portions of the main
body. In operation, a user may remove the top portion of the
egg peeler with the egg peeler oriented in a vertical plane,
place one or more eggs of sufficient diameter to be fully
enclosed by the main body of the egg peeler when inserted
into the egg peeler, pour water sufficient to cover a third of
the volume of the eggs when inserted into the main body,



US 9,968,211 B2

3

and replace the top convex end cap onto the top of the
cylinder with sufficient force to cause the convex top portion
to seal the main body of the cylinder so as to retain both the
egg and the water within the main body of the egg peeler.
The user then shakes the egg peeler apparatus for a pre-
determined time and removes one of the convex end cap
portions, unsealing the egg peeler main body to permit
removal of the separated egg and egg shell portions from the
cylindrical main body of the apparatus.

Although particular exemplary embodiments of the inno-
vation will be presented herein, it should be apparent that
additional embodiments may be accessible to those of
ordinary skill in the art without departing from the spirit of
innovation of the recited embodiments.

Turning now to FIG. 1, consistent with certain embodi-
ments of the invention this figure is a view of the personal
egg peeler apparatus consistent with certain embodiments of
the present invention. In this exemplary embodiment, a top
portion 100 of a personal egg peeler apparatus is presented
as having a substantially circular cross section. However,
this should in no way be considered limiting as the top
portion 100 may be manufactured in any shape that is
consistent with the shape of the main body of the personal
egg peeler and may be oval, square, rectangular or any other
shape that permits the top portion 100 to be inserted into or
onto the top of the main body 104 of the personal egg peeler.
The top portion 100 may also have a convex shaped portion
102 so as to permit a user to insert a thumb or fingers into
the convex shaped portion 102 to readily grasp the top
portion 100 of the personal egg peeler when in use.

The top portion 100 may have a sealing element 108 that
is configured to form a closure that permits a water tight seal
when the top portion 100 is reattached to the main body 104
of the personal egg peeler. The sealing element may consist
of clip fastening, gasket, screw type element, o-ring element,
slide and lock connection, or any other fastening structure
that permits the top element 100 to be attached to and
removed from the main body 104 of the personal egg peeler
while maintaining a water tight seal when the top portion
100 is fully secured to the main body 104. The top portion
100 may also be manufactured of a material such as rubber,
plastic, silicon, acrylic, or any other equivalent material, that
permits a water tight seal to be maintained when the top
portion 100 is fully secured onto the top portion of the main
body 104 of the personal egg peeler.

The bottom portion 110 of the personal egg peeler may
also be convex in shape. The convex shaped portion 102 of
both the top portion 100 and the bottom portion 110 permits
each end portion to participate in the action by forming a

grip for a user to firmly grasp the personal egg peeler when

in use. As such, it is readily apparent that the convex shaped
portion 102 is not the only shape in which the top portion
100 and the bottom portion 110 may be manufactured.
Additional shapes that permit a firm grasp of the top portion
100 and the bottom portion 110 of the personal egg peeler,
such as a flat surface with protrusions, a wavy surface, a
central cone, or any other shaped indentation, are equally
disclosed as being consistent with the purpose of the convex
shaped portion 102 of the top portion 100 and the bottom
portion 110 of the personal egg peeler.

Turning now to FIG. 2, consistent with certain embodi-
ments of the invention is a view of the main body of a
personal egg peeler apparatus consistent with certain
embodiments of the present invention. In an exemplary
embodiment, the main body 200 of the personal egg peeler
may be configured in any shape that permits the complete
enclosure of one or more eggs when the eggs are inserted
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into the main body 200. The main body 200 may be
manufactured of any material, such as glass, plastic, acrylic,
or any other material that is water proof and has a hardness
greater than the hardness of the shell of an egg to be inserted.
In a non-limiting example, the main body 200 of the
personal egg peeler is presented as a hollow cylinder.
However, the main body 200 could equally well be manu-
factured as a hollow square, rectangular, oval, or other shape
that would permit the complete insertion of one or more eggs
into the hollow portion of the main body 200.

The inner surface of the main body 200 may have raised
protrusions 204 that extend into the hollow space within the
main body 200. The raised protrusions 204 may be manu-
factured as a seamless portion of the interior surface of main
body 200, or they may be manufactured separately and later
attached to the interior surface of the main body 200. In this
exemplary embodiment, the raised protrusions 204 contrib-
ute to the action of peeling the one or more eggs inserted into
the personal egg peeler.

In an exemplary embodiment, the top portion 100 and
bottom portion 110 of the personal egg peeler may be
manufactured as separable end portions of the personal egg
peeler. A top connector portion 202 and a bottom connector
portion 206 may be shaped to form a locking connection
with the top portion 100 and bottom portion 110 when
placed in contact with the main body 200 of the personal egg
peeler.

When preparing to use the personal egg peeler, either the
top portion 100 or the bottom portion 110 may be removed
from contact with the main body 200. At this point, one or
more eggs may be inserted into the main body 200 of the
apparatus making the apparatus ready for use in removing
the peel from a hard-boiled egg or eggs, depending upon the
size and configuration of the apparatus. Water is placed in
the cavity of the main body 200 to a level that is approxi-
mately one third of the volume of the interior of the main
body 200. Alternatively, in another exemplary embodiment,
a water level marker may be indicated on the exterior of the
apparatus to provide a user with a guideline for the water
level that is preferred when using the apparatus. The top
portion 100 or bottom portion 110, whichever was removed
to permit the insertion of the egg(s) and water, is placed fully
in contact with the main body 200 so as to form a sealed,
water tight container around the one or more inserted eggs.
The user may then firmly grasp the personal egg peeler by
the top and bottom convex, or other shaped, portions and
operate the apparatus by shaking the personal cgg peeler
vigorously.

In this exemplary embodiment, the top portion 100 and
the bottom portion 110 of the apparatus are fully removable
to facilitate cleaning of the interior of the main body 200 of
the personal egg peeler apparatus.

Turning now to FIG. 3, consistent with certain embodi-
ments of the invention is a view of a main body and end
portion connectors of a personal egg peeler consistent with
certain embodiments of the present invention. In this exem-
plary embodiment, the main body 300 of the personal egg
peeler may be connected to a top capping portion and a
bottom capping portion (not shown) through the connection
point 302 formed as a part of the main body 300 top and
bottom sections. The connection point 302 may be formed as
a locking channel that permits the insertion of a top cap or
a bottom cap and forming a water tight seal as the top cap
and/or bottom cap are turned to secure the top cap or bottom
cap in the locking channel. It is understood that a locking
channel is simply one implementation of the water tight seal
between the end caps and the main body 300 of the appa-
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ratus. Additional sealing mechanisms that may form a water
tight seal when fully engaged may include clip fasteners,
gaskets, a screw type element, an o-ring element, slide and
lock connection, or any other fastening structure that permits
the end caps to be firmly attached to the main body 300 and
forming a water tight seal.

Turning now to FIG. 4, consistent with certain embodi-
ments of the invention is an exploded view of a main body
and end portion connectors of a personal egg peeler consis-
tent with certain embodiments of the present invention. In
this exemplary view, the main body 400 of the personal egg
peeler is a hollow structure that permits the insertion of one
or more eggs into the hollow cavity forming the main body
400. Although the main body 400 is circular in cross section
in this exemplary embodiment, this should in no way be
considered limiting, as the main body 400 may be of any
shape in cross section as long as the central portion of the
main body has a cavity that accepts the insertion of one or
more eggs in such as fashion as to permit the top end cap 402
and the bottom end cap 404 to be securely fastened to the
main body 400 with the eggs fully inserted. The top end cap
402 and the bottom end cap 404 are configured to permit the
end caps to be fastened to the top portion and the bottom
portion of the main body 400, respectively, to form a water
tight seal with the one or more eggs fully inserted into the
main body 400.

Turning now to FIG. 5, consistent with certain embodi-
ments of the invention is a flow diagram for the operation of
a personal egg peeler consistent with certain embodiments
of the present invention. In this exemplary embodiment, the
action of peeling one or more eggs in the personal egg peeler
begins at step 500 when a user removes an end cap, either
the top portion or the bottom portion, of the personal egg
peeler. At step 504, the user may place just one egg, or more
than one egg, depending upon the size of the eggs relative
to the hollow body section of the personal egg peeler. The
user may only place the number of eggs into the personal
egg peeler that will fit inside with sufficient clearance to
permit the top of the personal egg peeler to be placed back
into contact with the main body of the personal egg peeler
so as to form a water tight seal, and will permit unrestrained
movement of the egg, or eggs, inside the personal egg peeler.

At step 508, the user may add water to the main body of
the personal egg peeler in sufficient quantity to fill a third of
the interior of the main body, or suflicient water to rise to the
indicator marking on the exterior surface of the main body
of the personal egg peeler. At step 512, the user places the
removed portion, whether the top portion or the bottom
portion, of the personal egg peeler back into contact with the

main body of the personal egg peeler. The placement of the °

removed portion of the egg peeler must be such that the top,
or bottom, portion is in full contact along the entire extent
of the gasket with the interior surface of the main body of the
personal egg peeler, and put in place with sufficient force so
as to form a water tight seal between the gasket part and the
interior surface of the main body of the personal egg peeler.

At step 516, the user performs the egg peeling action by
picking up the personal egg peeler and agitating the personal
egg peeler in up and down, and circular motions for a
pre-determined period of time. The pre-determined period of
time may be approximately ten seconds, or may be adjusted
based upon user experience or the number of eggs that have
been inserted into the personal egg peeler to a greater or
lesser extent to achieve a complete peeling action. At 520,
the user, after agitating the personal egg peeler for the
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pre-determined period of time, may remove the end cap
portion of the personal egg peeler and pour out the separated
egg and egg shell along with the water added earlier in the
process. When completed, the top and bottom portions of the
personal egg peeler may be removed to facilitate cleaning.

While certain illustrative embodiments have been
described, it is evident that many alternatives, modifications,
permutations and variations will become apparent to those
skilled in the art in light of the foregoing description.

What is claimed is:

1. An egg peeler apparatus, comprising:

a container having a hollow main body and a top end cap

and a bottom end cap;

the top end cap and bottom end cap having a convex

shaped portion where said convex shaped portion is
oriented such that the curved surface of each top and
bottom end cap faces the interior of the cylindrical
main body and forming the top and bottom portions of
the container;

the interior surface of the container having a plurality of

raised protrusions of suflicient height to extend into the
hollow area of the hollow container;

the container main body having an internal dimension of

sufficient diameter to permit the insertion of one or
more standard size chicken eggs;

the apparatus configured to peel the one or more standard

sized chicken eggs inserted into the hollow container
when agitated by a user.

2. The apparatus of claim 1, where the main body of the
container may have an external shape that is cylindrical,
oval, square, rectangular, or any other regular shape.

3. The apparatus of claim 1, where the end caps form a
water tight seal when securely fastened to the top and bottom
portions of the main body of the container.

4. The apparatus of claim 1, where the raised protrusions
are formed of the same material as the interior surface of the
main body of the container.

S. The apparatus of claim 4, where the raised protrusions
are shaped in an oval, rectangular, circular, square, or any
other shape that is operative to form a protrusion against
which an egg shell may impact.

6. The apparatus of claim 1, where the main body of the
container is of sufficient dimension to be held in the hand of
a user.

7. The apparatus of claim 1, where the top end cap and
bottom end cap convex shape forms the center portion of the
top end cap and bottom end cap, where the convex shape is
of sufficient depth to permit a secure grip when held in the
hand of the user.

8. The apparatus of claim 1, further comprising a fasten-
ing portion forming a portion of the top end cap and the
bottom end cap where the fastening portion permits a user to
remove the top end cap and the bottom end cap to remove
any eggs and egg shells and to clean the interior of the main
body of the container.

9. The apparatus of claim 1, where the interior volume of
the main body of the container is sufficient to permit the
insertion of as few as one or as many as three grade A large
chicken eggs.

10. The apparatus of claim 1, where the agitation of the
device is performed by the user for a predetermined time
period of sufficient duration to crack and separate the shell
from the egg or eggs inserted into the main body of the
container.



